HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING SUB COMMITTEE

Monday, 28 June 2021

Minutes of the meeting of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub Committee held via Microsoft Teams at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Marianne Fredericks (Chairman) Alderman Vincent Keaveny

Tijs Broeke (Deputy Chairman) Paul Kennedy

Munsur Ali Alderman Bronek Masojada

Randall Anderson

Mary Durcan

Helen Fentimen

Alderman Alison Gowman

Benjamin Murphy

Henrika Priest

Jillian Reid

Ruby Sayed

Officers:

Simon Cribbens

Kirsty Lowe

Will Norman

Chris Pelham

Community & Children's Services Department

Antoinette Duhaney Town Clerk's Department Ben Dunleavy Town Clerk's Department Jayne Moore Town Clerk's Department **Kerry Nicholls** Town Clerk's Department Chandni Tanna Town Clerk's Department Charlie Pearce Chamberlain's Department Inspector Mark Walden **British Transport Police** PC Jason Foster City of London Police

1. APOLOGIES

Ruby Sayed, Chairman of Community and Children's Services Committee was in the Chair.

Apologies for absence were received from Natasha Lloyd-Owen.

2. MEMBERS DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT

There were no declarations.

3. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN

Members elected a Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 29.

RESOLVED, that being the only Member willing to serve, Marianne Fredericks be appointed as Chairman of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub Committee for the ensuing year.

4. ELECTION OF DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Members elected a Deputy Chairman in accordance with Standing Order 30.

RESOLVED, that being the only Member willing to serve, Tijs Broeke be appointed as Deputy Chairman of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub Committee for the ensuing year.

5. **MINUTES**

RESOLVED, that the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 21 April 2021 be approved.

6. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

Members received the Sub-Committee's outstanding actions list and the following update was noted:

 The Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub-Committee Away Day (Action 17/20/HRS) due to take place on 15 July 2021 would be rescheduled for September 2021 following the extension of COVID-19 restrictions to 19 July 2021.

RESOLVED, that outstanding actions be noted.

7. ROUGH SLEEPING INITIATIVE GRANT FUNDING 2021/22

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services providing detail on the various City of London interventions funded by the Rough Sleeping Initiative grant for the 2021/22 financial year and the following points were made:

- The Rough Sleeping Initiative (RSI) was launched by the Government in March 2018 with the aim of reducing overall rough sleeping numbers in the 83 local authorities with the highest numbers of people sleeping rough, based on the 2017 rough sleeping snapshot. On 15 May 2021, the City of London Corporation was notified that it would receive a total of £1,028,677 for the 2021/22 financial year. This was the largest RSI grant allocation to date and would fund 14 different interventions provided by a minimum of eight organisations. Most interventions would fund new or existing posts, employed directly through the City of London Corporation or via commissioned partners. It was also planned to fund accommodation services. specialised services immigration and talking therapy and a personalisation budget. Further details of how RSI grant awards for the 2021/22 financial year had been apportioned to local authorities across England would be provided to Committee Members following the meeting.
- In response to question on the planned Year 4 interventions, the Rough Sleeping Service Manager confirmed that the Mobile Intervention Support Team service had been launched in April 2021. This service, provided by Thames Reach, offered in-reach support to individuals in temporary accommodation with the aim of stabilising them in

accommodation and ensuring they received the right level of health intervention. This service had been funded for a six-month duration and would cease in October 2021; however, consideration could be given to extending the service should there be sufficient client need.

- The Chairman noted the new post of EU Advisor and underlined the need for support to be in place for any individual repatriated to their home country. The Rough Sleeping Service Manager confirmed that the new post had been designed to offer a specialised immigration service to provide qualified assessments to 15-20 clients per year including investigation, liaison and submission of applications to the Home Office and embassies, direct case management of the client and ongoing contact with referral services. The EU Advisor would not have direct involvement with the repatriation process but the City of London Corporation was committed to offering a reconnection process in which support was put in place for individual clients prior to repatriation.
- A Committee Member welcomed the successful RSI funding application. It would be important to ensure that robust monitoring was in place to demonstrate the effectiveness of initiatives and support future funding applications. The Rough Sleeping Service Manager advised that the City of London Corporation worked closely with its delivery partners to monitor progress and outcomes. A report would be presented to the next meeting of the Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Sub-Committee on 4 October 2021 outlining how performance was monitored across the interventions funded via the RSI.

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

8. GROWTH PROGRAMME UPDATE REPORT

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services on the growth programme and the following points were made:

- The City of London Corporation's growth programme was made up of two main elements comprising the City Assessment Centre and High Support Hostel, both of which were being progressed. Heads of terms were being negotiated with the building owner in respect of the preferred site of the City Assessment Centre, with the provision scheduled to launch in early 2022. The capital works programme for the High Support Hostel was also being taking forward with the provision on track to open to a small cohort of existing residents of the Carter Lane Hostel in December 2021. The High Support Hostel was being designed to deliver a Psychologically Informed Environment that would consider the whole individual in their living environment, including previous life experiences, to provide tailored support via a strength-based model.
- A Committee Member was pleased to note the ambitions for the High Support Hostel and queried whether the refurbishment of the building would take the wider aspirations of the City of London Corporation

around environmental sustainability into account. The Head of the Homelessness Prevention and Rough Sleeping Service confirmed that the procurement process for the High Support Hostel had given due weight to environmental considerations and had placed a particular stress on the realisation of social value within the design of the space for clients and staff.

RESOLVED, that the update be noted.

9. QUARTER 4 2020/21 PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services in respect of rough sleeper data for Quarter 4 2020/21 and the following point was made:

- The total number of rough sleepers in the City of London in Quarter 4 2020/21 was 102 individuals, which represented a 23% decrease on the previous quarter. This included a 26% decrease in new rough sleepers, individuals returning to sleep rough in the area and long term Living on the Streets clients. The number of new rough sleepers refusing to engage in support had reduced since Quarter 3 and ten long term Living on the Streets clients had been supported into positive outcomes during Quarter 4. A total of 94 accommodation outcomes were recorded on the Combined Homelessness and Information Network (CHAIN) which was an increase on the 72 recorded in the previous Quarter and included accommodation in relation to the 29 Severe Weather Emergency Proposal outcomes during the quarter. Aggregated CHAIN data for the 2020/21 financial year would be released shortly and was expected to show a significant increase in the number of accommodation outcomes Two individuals had been supported in on the previous year. reconnecting with a local authority with which they were linked.
- In considering the update, a Committee Member noted that the decrease in those sleeping rough during Quarter 4 2020/21 in the City of London was in line with the neighbouring London Boroughs of Southwark and Tower Hamlets which had seen decreases of 30% and 26% respectively. This was not the experience of some other London Boroughs which had seen increases during the same period. The Rough Sleeping Service Manager advised that as the rough sleeping population tended to be transient it was often difficult to map and it was possible that there had been some duplication of individual clients which could not be identified until aggregate CHAIN data was available. Approaches to tackling rough sleeping and homelessness varied across London and it was often more helpful to view wider trends at a Greater London level. The Chairman requested that aggregated CHAIN data for the 2020/21 financial year be circulated to Committee Members following the meeting when available.

RESOLVED, that the update be noted.

10. HOMELESS LINK IMMIGRATION PLEDGE APPEAL

The Sub-Committee considered a report of the Director of Community and Children's Services on the Homeless Link Immigration Pledge Appeal and the following points were made:

- Homeless Link was a national membership charity for organisations working directly with people who become homeless in England which aimed to improve service provision and campaign for policy change to help end homelessness. Homeless Link had launched a campaign in opposition to Home Office changes to the Immigration Act in October 2020 and the subsequent code of guidance for which it was seeking support of the voluntary sector, local authorities and public sector bodies. The Homeless Link Immigration Pledge had been widely adopted by the voluntary sector. Four local authorities comprising the London Boroughs of Islington, Haringey, Lewisham and Southwark, as well as the Greater London Authority, had also voiced their support for the pledge and their intention not to use the Rough Sleeping Support Service referral mechanism.
- The Committee was asked to consider if it supported Homeless Link's statement and policy position and the following points were made:
 - A number of the City of London Corporation's key partners and providers had signed Homeless Link's Pledge including Thames Reach and St Mungo's.
 - Whilst there were no legal ramifications to signing Homeless Link's Pledge, this could be seen as a political act which could have consequences for the City of London Corporation's future interactions with the Government, such as funding applications. Direct lobbying via established channels and with partners such as London Councils offered a valid alternative by which the City of London Corporation could influence future policy direction.
 - Signing Homeless Link's Pledge would preclude the City of London Corporation from referring individuals to the Home Office on a case-by-case basis when appropriate. Should the City of London Corporation decide not to sign the Pledge, it could choose not to make a referral for individual cases.
 - The changes to the Immigration Act would only affect a very small number of individuals; however, the City of London Corporation had worked hard to build trust with this vulnerable client group. Use of the Rough Sleeping Support Service referral mechanism could impact the positive relationships that the City of London Corporation had built with vulnerable individuals which were crucial in encouraging them to engage with services.
 - Regardless of the issues raised within the Pledge, the City of London Corporation worked to meet the individual needs of all

people who were homeless or rough sleeping in the City of London, irrespective of their immigration status.

In summation, the Chairman noted that whilst expressing some reservations, the majority of Committee Members had voiced full or partial support for the Homeless Link's statement and policy position. This included the Chair and Deputy Chairman of the Community and Children's Service Committee who fully supported and endorsed the pledge. The Homeless Link Immigration Pledge Appeal would be referred to the Community and Children's Services Committee and, subject to its approval, thereafter to the Policy and Resources Committee for further consideration.

RESOLVED, that the Homeless Link Immigration Pledge Appeal be referred to the Community and Children's Services Committee and, subject to its approval, thereafter to the Policy and Resources Committee for consideration.

11. CITY OF LONDON POLICE UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received an update of the Commissioner of the City of London Police and the following points were made:

- Operation Luscombe had resumed on 28 April 2021. Since that date, 34 tickets had been issued of which 62% were "green" invites to attend the bi-weekly intervention hub, 26% were "amber" Community Protection Warnings and 9% were Community Protection Notices. The bi-weekly intervention hub had been held five times since 28 April 2021 with 18 separate attendances by those in receipt of "green" invites, as well individuals who had been directed to the hub by partners.
- A further three years of funding had recently been agreed for the biweekly intervention hub and would be used to cover venue hire and
 signage as well as modest refreshments. A Committee Member
 expressed interest in attending a future session of the intervention hub
 and details of upcoming sessions would be provided to Committee
 Members following the meeting.

RESOLVED, that the update be noted.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There was one question.

A Committee Member highlighted the importance of supporting businesses and residents to work with food banks and other initiatives across the City to reduce food waste and improve the access that homeless and rough sleeping individuals had to healthy food.

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT There was no other business.

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that, under Section 100(a) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Item no15-18

Para no

15. NON-PUBLIC MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the non-public minutes of the meeting held on 21 April 2021 be approved.

16. CITY OF LONDON POLICE NON-PUBLIC UPDATE

The Sub-Committee received a non-public update of the Commissioner of the City of London Police.

17. QUESTIONS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE WHILE THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no non-public questions.

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were two items of other business.

The meeting closed at 12.21 pm
Chairman

Contact Officer: Kerry Nicholls 020 7 332 1262 kerry.nicholls@cityoflondon.gov.uk